


i)

-

172

i

%DR'HWES' TERRITORIES

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES May 18", 2021

The Regular Meeting of Council was held on Tuesday, May 18, 2021 at 6:30pm By Video
Conference Call

Present: Mayor Kandis Jameson, Deputy Mayor Bouchard, Councilors Dohey, Duford,

Staff:

Groenewegen, Anderson and Willows

SAO — Glenn Smith, Director of Public Works — Mike Auge, Director of Finance - Sam
Mugford, Stephane Millette — Director of Recreation, Director of Protective Services —
Travis Wright & Council Administrator — Stacey Barnes

CALL TO ORDER:
This Meeting was called to order at 6:30pm with Mayor Jameson presiding.

ADOPTION OF AGENDA

#21-160 MOVED BY CLLR DUFORD
SECONDED BY: CLLR ANDERSON

Add ClIr Chambers to 7a) Excused Absence

DECLARATION OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest for the Regular Meeting of Council, Tuesday, May 18™,
2021

ANNOUNCMENTS, AWARDS & PRESENTATIONS

Clir Dohey — Thank you to the EMO crew during breakup 2021, to Deputy Mayor Bouchard
for keeping Council updated and to the Administration for welcoming the Fort Simpson
Evacuees.

ADMINISTRATIVE ENQUIRIES

Director of Finance — Sam Mugford
e Completed the Q1 financials and almost completed the financial statements. Will
schedule a finance committee meeting shortly
e June 10 is the property tax auction sale; it will be in person and through zoom

Director of Protective Services — Travis Wright
e Training with Ross this week regarding operations and programs
e 1001 Training exercises all week with testing at the end of the month
e 6 HRFD completed a mental health first aid course
e EMO debrief to come

Director of Recreation — Stephane Millette
« No changes to programming, the numbers have been good
e Have a draft application to sent to the EHO with updated guidelines around COVID
« Working on summer prep, and having a meeting with user groups for use of the fields
e 2 maintenance summer students have started
e Job posting have been advertised for a trail foreman and lifeguards
e Training for summer students around safety and equipment as they start

Page 1 of 4



A
Wegiver

HORTHWEST TERRITORIES

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES May 18", 2021

e Recreation Committee met last week, and Tourism Committee met today at lunch,
minutes to follow for information.
e Expression of Interest for the fisherman’s wharf closed on Friday, we received 2
applications, will award it by May 21
= Expression of Interest for Vale Island mowing closes on May 28"
« Funding Applications have been submitted for Youth/Recreation programming, ICIP
for ventilation retrofit repairs and Summer CAP funding is due May 30"
Deputy Mayor Bouchard — Are we expanding the capacity of the facilities?
Millette — That was submitted as part of the application to the EHO

Director of Public Works — Mike Auge
= Boil water advisory continues until further notice and will continue to be tested
e Addressing breakup issues along the beach road, Alaska road and the standing water
around Vale Island.
There is a water break in Neville Place and another on Woodland/Camsell Crescent
corner.
Street sweeper will be out on Wednesday starting on the South Side.
Curbside Cleanup starts May 25"
Legal survey for Frazer Place has been completed
Hired the General Foreman, he will be starting in June

SAO - Glenn Smith

On Saturday we accepted 27 Fort Simpson Evacuees, thank you to the Hay River
Health and Social Services for helping, they will be returning home on Wednesday
and the cost is covered by the GNWT

Thank you ad for the EMO committee will be going out

Human Resource manager ad is out

Power Franchise agreement process ongoing

Applied for funding for Covid vaccine program

e Community Plan amendment rezone for Vale Island is out for consultation. Deadline
is early June.

ICIP funding agreement has been executed

6. ADOPTION OF MINUTES
a. Regular Meeting of Council — April 26™, 2021

#21-161 MOVED BY: DEPUTY MAYOR BOUCHARD
SECONDED BY: CLLR DUFORD

CARRIED
b. Emergency Meeting of Council — May 7™, 2021

#21-162 MOVED BY: CLLR DUFORD
SECONDED BY: DEPUTY MAYOR BOUCHARD

CARRIED

Page 2 of 4



A
Wegiver

HORTHWEST TERRITORIES

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES May 18", 2021

7. NEW BUSINESS

a. Excused Absence

| RECOMMENDATION: |

#21-163
THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER excuses Councillor Chambers from the

Regular Meeting of Council, Tuesday, May 18", 2021
CARRIED

8. BYLAWS

a) Bylaw 2429/TAX/21 — Taxation — Third and Final Reading

#21-164 MOVED BY: CLLR WILLOWS

SECONDED BY: CLLR DUFORD
CARRIED

9. IN CAMERA

“Do you solemnly swear and sincerely affirm that you are alone and cannot be overheard
while in camera?” Yes by all of Council

#21-165 MOVED BY: CLLR DUFORD
SECONDED BY: DEPUTY MAYOR BOUCHARD

That the Council of the Town of Hay River move to In Camera at 7:00pm.

CARRIED

#21-166 MOVED BY: CLLR DUFORD
SECONDED BY: CLLR GROENEWEGEN

That the Council of the Town of Hay River move out of In Camera At 7:49PM.

CARRIED

Page 3 of 4



” oy

HORTHWEST TERRITORIES

LB
mﬁ h
S I EGULAR MEETING MINUTES May 18%", 2021
ay I

10. ADJOURNMENT

#21-167 MOVED BY: CLLR WILLOWS

That the Regular Meeting of Council be adjourned at 7:50pm.
CARRIED

Certified Correct as Recorded on the 18" Day of May 2021

These minutes were accepted by motion #

Mayor

Senior Administrative Officer

Page 4 of 4



MONTHLY
POLICING REPORT
May 2021

Hay River Detachment

“G” Division
Northwest Territories

Town of Hay River

o Royal Canadian Gendarmerie royale
wens  Mounted Police du Canada




The Hay River Detachment responded to a total of 269 calls for service during the month of May 2021, within
the town of Hay River.

Annual Performance Plan (A.P.P.’S) Community Priorities

The Annual Performance Plan follows the RCMP fiscal year which ended at the end of March. The Community
and Detachment priorities established for the current fiscal year starting April 15t are as follows:

- Community Policing, and specifically Community and Partner Engagement with the objective of
Identifying community and external partners, stakeholders and then establish and maintain
engagement with the goal of information sharing and partnering in initiatives to address issues in the
community.

- Traffic and Road Safety with the specific objective of enhancing road safety by targeting impaired
driving.

- Harm Reduction, now this is a broad topic and can seem ambiguous however, the specific objective is
to reduce a variety of crime by targeting prolific offenders and reducing the amount of crime and harm
caused by a small percentage of the population.

Community consultation and feedback is critical in addressing the aforementioned priorities and creating a
Community Consultive Group will be a great place to start and pave the way for open dialogue. | would like to
invite the community to identify individuals or groups that may have an interest in participating. Anyone
interested is invited to contact Sgt. Kurtis Pillipow at the Hay River RCMP detachment.

1 - This month the detachment addressed Community Policing — Community/Partner Engagement by:

Hay River RCMP continued with efforts to identify activities compliant with COVID guidelines and restrictions,
yet enable the RCMP to engage with the community in a meaningful way. We, Hay River RCMP are making
necessary considerations and adjustments to participate in community events and work with community
partners as we all navigate through the challenges of COVID 19, and more so now that the variant of concern
is taking hold in other areas in Canada and remains a concern in NT. Hay River RCMP does continue to share
monthly “Fast Facts newsletter” from the Centre for Youth Crime Prevention to share contacts and promote
resources and activities, distribute funding initiatives, and visit schools in an effort to engage with youth. This
month, Hay River RCMP attended a Missing and Murdered Women and Girls event and lowered the flag in
mourning the 215 children discovered in graves at the former Kamloops residential school.




2 - This month the detachment addressed Traffic - Safety by:

Hay River RCMP continue to, with the assistance of NT RCMP traffic services, patrol the roadways in an effort
to deter and detect unsafe driving situations. This month, seven reports of impaired driving were investigated,
and of these seven, one was deemed to be unfounded. Of note, six check stops where completed and many
violations where identified and addressed. We encourage anyone to report unsafe driving or risky driving
behavior to the RCMP, including off highway areas as now that the warmer season is upon us, ATV patrols will
become common place. Cst. Rosborough’s partnership in ATVs patrols, and other road safety initiatives is very
much appreciated and valued.




3 - This month the detachment addressed Harm Reduction by:

To address those who cause the greatest harm in the Hay River RCMP detachment area, a Habitual Offender
Management system was created in an effort to identify and monitor those who are most likely to cause the
most significant amount of harm to the community. Harm reduction will tie directly into community policing
as a priority, and partner engagement will be critical to successful outcomes.

Of note, there has been a marked increase in the number of calls for service received related to vagrancy and
intoxicated subjects in public. In May, as an example one individual was addressed 20 times, and another 25
times and in all instances, public intoxication was the paramount concern reported and the police response is
generally to locate a safe place for the individual(s) to be escorted which is very time consuming. This is very
taxing on police resources which are diverted from the three identified priorities however a reality that cannot
be ignored.



Current Month

Current | Yearto . Previous Year
OCCURRENCES Month Date of previous Total
year
Assaults (Not including 23 58 13
285
sexual assaults)
Sexual Offences 5 10 1 27
Break and Enters 4 12 1 37
(Residence & Business)
Theft of Motor Vehicle 1 3 1 18
Theft Under $ 5000.00 6 13 2 118
Theft Over $ 5000.00 ! 2 1 6
Drugs ( Possession ) 1 3 4 3
Drugs ( Trafficking ) 2 6 4 23
Liquor Act 4l 88 21 301
Unlawful Sale 0 0 0 1
(Bootlegging)
Causing a Disturbance / 55 185 52 753
Mischief (total)
Causing a Disturbance 9 56 22 329
Mischief — damage to 7 17 4
74
property
Mischief —obstruct 39 102 26
. 115
enjoyment
Impaired Driving ! 28 9 212
Other Complaints 68 212 50 859
Total Violations 214 1102 159 2552
Total Calls for service 269 1145 237 3141




Current

current | Year to Month | Previous
JUSTICE REPORTS of Year
Month Date .
previous | Total
year
Victim Services Referral - 3 10 4 28
Accepted
Victim Services Referral - Declined 16 58 7 304
Victim Services - Proactive 3 8 1 8
Referral
Victim Services - Not Available 0 0 0 0
Youth Alternative Measures (YCIA 0 0 1 3
Warnings & Cautions)
Youth D|v_erS|on (Community 0 0 0 9
Justice Referrals)
Adult Diversion (Community
. 0 0 0 1
Justice Referrals)
Emergency Protection Orders 0 0 0 6
(Detachment Initiated)
ODARA Reports 2 5 0 20
Prisoners Held 29 85 13 389
Prisoners Escorted 0 3 0 7
Prisoners Held non-PROS Agency 0 0 0 4
Liquor Destroyed Immediately 13 40 0 29
~850
Small grams
Drug Seizures g:ﬂam'ty (Cc;rcna;“e), 3 3
Cocaine quantity
of heroin
Firearm Seizures 0 0 3 1
Liquor seizures 0 0 0 3

The Hay River Detachment housed a total of 37 prisoners in the month of May which includes matters
emanating from KFN, Hay River, Enterprise, Court and assistance to surrounding detachments.

Sgt. Kurtis Pillipow

Detachment Commander, Hay River RCMP




ﬂqgg REPORT TO COUNCIL

ey
DEPARTMENT: ADMINISTRATION DATE: June 15", 2021
SUBJECT: LETTER OF SUPPORT FOR SOARING EAGLE FRIENDSHIP CENTRE
| RECOMMENDATION: |

THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER directs Administration to draft a
letter supporting the Soaring Eagle Friendship Centre’s application for Men’s Healing
Fund Expression of Interest.

| BACKGROUND: |

The Soaring Eagle Friendship Centre is applying to a funding program from the GNWT called
Men’s Healing Fund. The program is a community-based men’s healing program used
throughout the NWT. The principles of the Men’s Healing Fund include self-determination,
autonomy, collaboration, innovation, progress, dignity, strength, flexibility, respect, hope and
belonging.

These principles share significant overlap with the United Nations Declaration of the Rights of
Indigenous Peoples as well as the Truth and Reconciliation Commission insights.

There is no conflict with the Town in terms of this funding program as the Town will not submit
an application under this program.

| COUNCIL POLICY / STRATEGY OR GOAL: |

N/A

| APPLICABLE LEGISLATION, BYLAWS, STUDIES, PLANS:

N/A

| FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

N/A

| ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATIONS:

N/A

| ATTACHMENTS:

Letter from the Soaring Eagle Friendship Centre

Prepared by: Reviewed by:
Stacey Barnes Glenn Smith
Council Administrator Senior Administrative Officer

June 11t 2021 June 11t 2021



June 7, 2021

Tanya Ashley

Team Lead, Family Violence and Violence Against Women
Community Justice and Policing, Department of Finance

PO Box 1320, Yellowknife, NT X1A 2L9

SUBJECT: SOARING EAGLE FRIENDSHIP CENTRE REQUEST FOR MEN’S HEALING FUNDING

On behalf of the Town of Hay River, | would like to extend our wholehearted support to the Soaring
Eagle Friendship Centre (SEFC) to accompany their request to the Government of the Northwest
Territories for funding to assist their current and future funding that relate to Men’s Healing.

We sincerely feel that the Soaring Eagle Friendship Centre is a valuable asset to the Community of Hay
River as it promotes and represents healthy programming, especially considering their day-to-day
interaction with our community’s vulnerable population and those experiencing homelessness.

The funding greatly enhances the Centre’s ability to continue providing successful programs and
services. Its’ valuable programs like these that help to help to heal our community.

We are hopeful that you will consider the SEFC a successful candidate for this application.

Thank you for the opportunity for us to recognize and show our support for the value of the SEFC.

Sincerely,

Mayor

Kandis Jameson

Town of Hay River



&
FA&7N  REPORT TO COUNCIL
a}' Lver
DEPARTMENT: ADMINISTRATION DATE: June 15, 2020

SUBJECT: Disaster Assistance Policy — 2021 Flood Damages

| RECOMMENDATION: |

THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER directs Administration to apply to the
Government of the Northwest Territories (GNWT) for financial relief through their
Disaster Assistance Policy for costs arising from the 2021 river breakup flood damage to
municipal owned infrastructure.

| BACKGROUND: |

On May 7', 2021, upon recommendation from the local Fire Chief, a Local State of
Emergency was declared by the Council of the Town of Hay River due to the high risk of
flooding associated with river breakup. During the height of the emergency, the Town
communicated twice daily through digital media and information posts the status and
risks of the emergency while emphasizing flood preparedness. Flooding did occur and
affected Town of Hay River infrastructure including several roads and berm systems.

Most of the damage sustained during the flooding was to the Town’s road system.
There was damage to the berm system located in the West Channel area of the town
near the West Point First Nations community.

Preassessments on the damaged infrastructure have been completed but in some
cases more assessments and associated costing for repairs are still needed.
Preassessment information is presented in the attached Flood Damage Report — Public
Works — May 2021.

The GNWT has a Disaster Assistance Policy (DAP) 21.04 (copy attached). Due to river
breakup flooding occurring in several NWT communities, the GNWT has been
promoting the DAP to community governments and households and businesses to
cover flood related damages. Administration has reviewed the policy and is
recommending that Council support an application through the DAP for the 2021 river
breakup flood damage to municipal owned infrastructure.

The Town notified its insurance broker of the event and flood damages. The response
has been that roads and berms are not insured.

| COUNCIL POLICY / STRATEGY OR GOAL: |

N/A




&
FA&7N  REPORT TO COUNCIL
- R
ﬂg« wer
DEPARTMENT: ADMINISTRATION DATE: June 15, 2020

SUBJECT: Disaster Assistance Policy — 2021 Flood Damages

| APPLICABLE LEGISLATION, BYLAWS, STUDIES, PLANS:

GNWT Disaster Assistance Policy 21.4
Flood Damage Report — Public Works — May 2021

| FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

Excess of $100,000

| ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATIONS:

N/A

| ATTACHMENTS:

N/A
Prepared by:
Glenn Smith

SAO
June 11, 2021




)

2 Policy
Northwest . . |
Territories Disaster Assistance

1. Statement of Policy

The Government of the Northwest Territories may provide financial assistance
to community governments, small businesses, or residents of the Northwest
Territories who have suffered damage as a result of a disaster.

2. Principles

The Government of the Northwest Territories will adhere to the following
principles when implementing this Policy:

(1) The Government of the Northwest Territories should offer assistance
when widespread damage has occurred as a result of a disaster. The
Government of the Northwest Territories should also assist community
governments in responding to an emergency which results in a
disaster.

(2) The Government of the Northwest Territories should provide
reasonable levels of disaster assistance but should not offer full
compensation for damage or loss.

(3) Community Governments, small businesses and residents should take
appropriate and reasonable measures to prevent and minimize
damage.

3. Scope

This Policy applies to community governments, small businesses and
residents of the Northwest Territories.

4. Definitions
The following terms apply to this Policy:
Assigned Value of Damage - the total value arrived at through the application

of an approved Standardized Item List plus the appraised value of improved
real property.

Revised 10 March 2005 Page 1 of 13



> Policy 1 oa

Northwest Disaster Assistance
erritories

Community Government - a municipal corporation or, in the absence of a
municipal corporation, a community governing authority recognized by the
Minister of Municipal and Community Affairs as the prime public authority
responsible for the provision of municipal services.

Damage - property damage or loss which occurs as a result of a disaster.

Disaster - an event resulting from an emergency which leads to widespread
damage.

Emergency - a situation or the threat of an impending situation abnormally
affecting lives and property which requires a concerted response by a number
of agencies, both government and private, under the direction of the
appropriate elected officials, as distinct from routine operations carried out by
agencies as normal day-to-day procedures.

Emergencies may include: extraordinary fire, flood, explosion, earthquake,
landslide, severe weather, epidemic, shipping accident, mining accident,
transportation accident, electrical power failure, nuclear accident,
environmental pollution, or any other emergency not attributable to enemy
attack, sabotage, or other hostile action, where injury or loss is or may be
caused to persons or property.

Emergency Operations - extraordinary responses, beyond normal or routine
functions, to a real or anticipated emergency to protect residents and to
minimize damage to property.

Improved Real Property - physical land and structures or other improvements
thereon.

Municipal Corporation - a corporation established under or continued by the
Charter Communities Act, the Cities, Towns and Villages Act, the Hamlets Act
or the Settlements Act.

Municipal Programs and Services - those programs and services which are
normally provided by community governments, including the provision of
water; collection, treatment and disposal of sewage and garbage; fire
protection; road maintenance; recreation; by-law enforcement; land use
control and community planning. This may also include land administration,
borrowing and the collection of property taxes.

Revised 10 March 2005 Page 2 of 13



o) Policy
g 21.04
Northwest Disaster Assistance

Territories

Pre-disaster Condition - the condition of a property prior to the occurrence of
damage, which is the result of a disaster.

Small Business - a business which complies with the legal requirements to
carry on business in the Northwest Territories where the owners operate the
business and are dependent on the business for their main livelihood.

Standardized Item List - a list of the types of items, excluding improved real
property, considered eligible for disaster assistance after a specific disaster,
as well as an assigned value for each listed item type to be used in
determining the amount of a disaster assistance payment.

5. Authority and Accountability
(1) General
This Policy is issued under the authority of the Executive Council. The
authority to make exceptions and approve revisions to this Policy rests
with the Executive Council. Authority and accountability is further
defined as follows:
(@) Minister
The Minister of Municipal and Community Affairs (the Minister)
is accountable to the Executive Council for the implementation

of this Policy.

(b)  Deputy Minister

The Deputy Minister of Municipal and Community Affairs (the
Deputy Minister) is accountable to the Minister and responsible
to the Minister for the administration of this Policy.

(2)  Specific

(a)  Executive Council

The Executive Council may:

Revised 10 March 2005 Page 3 of 13



o) Policy

Northwest
Territories

21.04
Disaster Assistance

0] determine if the Disaster Assistance Policy should be
applied to a specific disaster; and
(i) extend the provisions of this Policy to individuals who
have suffered from a disaster, but are not resident in a
community as defined in this Policy.
(b)  Minister

The Minister may:

0]

(i1)

(iii)

(v)

(v)

(Vi)

(vii)

consider a community government's request that the
Disaster Assistance Policy be applied;

recommend to the Executive Council that the Disaster
Assistance Policy should be applied to a specific disaster;

establish a Disaster Assistance Committee upon
Executive Council direction that the Disaster Assistance
Policy should be applied to a specific disaster;

appoint a member of the public service to chair a
Disaster Assistance Committee;

determine a minimum value of damage before disaster
assistance will be offered,;

determine the maximum percentage of the value of
damage that may be payable to a community resident or
small business;

approve a Standardized Item List recommended by a
Disaster Assistance Committee;

Revised 10 March 2005

Page 4 of 13



5% Policy 1 oa

Northwest Disaster Assistance
erritories

(viii) approve the amounts of disaster assistance to be paid;
and

(ix)  negotiate with the Government of Canada for financial
assistance.

© Deputy Minister

The Deputy Minister (or designate) will:

() accept, assess and advise the Minister on a community
government's request that the Disaster Assistance Policy
be applied;

(i)  designate at least one senior government official for
appointment to a Disaster Assistance Committee;

(i)  forward the recommendations of a Disaster Assistance
Committee for the Minister's approval; and

(iv) initiate payment, recording and recovery action of
disaster assistance payments.

(d)  Secretary of the Financial Management Board

The Secretary of the Financial Management Board will
designate at least one senior government official for
appointment to a Disaster Assistance Committee.

(e) Deputy Minister of Industry, Tourism and Investment

The Deputy Minister of Industry, Tourism and Investment will
designate at least one senior government official for
appointment to a Disaster Assistance Committee.

Revised 10 March 2005 Page 5 of 13



> Policy 1 oa

Northwest Disaster Assistance
erritories

0 Disaster Assistance Committee Chair

The Chair of a Disaster Assistance Committee:

0] will be accountable to the Deputy Minister for the
operations of the Disaster Assistance Committee;

(i)  will appoint to the Disaster Assistance Committee
officials designated by the Deputy Minister of Municipal
and Community Affairs, by the Secretary of the Financial
Management Board and by the Deputy Minister of
Industry, Tourism and Investment;

(i)  may appoint other members to serve on the Disaster
Assistance Committee; and

(iv)  will confer with the Regional Director of Emergency
Preparedness Canada on the interpretation and
application of the Disaster Financial Assistance
Arrangements (Canada).

6. Provisions
(1)  Eligibility
(a) Eligibility for disaster assistance payments is restricted to
community governments, small businesses and individuals
resident in a community which has suffered a disaster.
(b)  The Executive Council may extend the provisions of this Policy

to individuals who have suffered from a disaster, but are not
residents in a community as defined in this Policy.

(2)  Application of this Policy
(a)  After a disaster causing widespread damage has occurred:
0] the municipal corporation of the affected community

may request, by motion or resolution, that the Disaster
Assistance Policy be applied; or

Revised 10 March 2005 Page 6 of 13



Northwest
Territories

o) Policy

21.04
Disaster Assistance

(i)  where there is no municipal corporation as defined in
this Policy, the local Band Council of the affected
community may request, by Band Council Resolution,
that the Disaster Assistance Policy be applied; or

(i) the municipal corporation may declare a State of Local

Emergency.

(b)  Copies of motions, resolutions or declarations referred to in
Section 6(2)(a) are to be directed to the Deputy Minister of
Municipal and Community Affairs.

(c)  The Deputy Minister will forward copies of motions, resolutions
or declarations referred to in Section 6(2)(b), along with an
assessment of the situation, to the Minister.

(d)  The Minister may recommend to the Executive Council that the
Disaster Assistance Policy should be applied to the disaster in
question.

(3)  Criteria

The Executive Council will use the following criteria when determining
whether the Disaster Assistance Policy should be applied to a specific

disaster:

(@) the event was an emergency;

(b) damage was so widespread that a significant number of people
or properties were affected;

(c) the health, safety, and welfare of the affected residents were at
risk;

(d) the community conducted appropriate emergency operations
and advised the Deputy Minister;

(e) the community, small businesses and community residents

made serious effort to protect property and minimize risk.

Revised 10 March 2005 Page 7 of 13



o) Policy

Northwest
Territories

21.04
Disaster Assistance

(4) Disaster Assistance Committee

A Disaster Assistance Committee will be established upon Executive
Council direction that the Disaster Assistance Policy should be applied
to a specific disaster:

(@) Membership

A Disaster Assistance Committee shall be comprised of:

0]
(ii)

(iii)

a Chair appointed by the Minister;

officials designated by the Deputy Minister of Municipal
and Community Affairs, by the Secretary of the Financial
Management Board and by the Deputy Minister of
Industry, Tourism and Investment; and

any additional members as may be appointed by the
Chair of the Disaster Assistance Committee.

(b)  Role and Responsibilities

Each Disaster Assistance Committee:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(v)

(V)

will develop, and recommend for the Minister’'s approval,
a Standardized Items List;

will establish a disaster assistance registration office to
facilitate the distribution and receiving of statement of
damage and loss forms;

will establish a reasonable date by which all applications
relating to the disaster must be submitted and provide
public notice of the dates for registration;

will accept applications for disaster assistance submitted
in accordance with this Policy;

will determine the eligibility of applicants for disaster
assistance;

Revised 10 March 2005

Page 8 of 13



5% Policy 1 oa

Northwest Disaster Assistance
erritories

(vi)  will examine all applications and determine whether the
damage is eligible in accordance with this Policy and the
Standardized Items List;

(vii) may engage duly qualified professional appraisers to
examine and assess applications for disaster assistance
using established professional standards and any
guidelines established for this purpose by the
Committee;

(viii) may return any applications to the appraisers for further
assessment where such action appears appropriate;

(ix)  will determine amounts to be recommended for payment
in accordance with this Policy; and

(x)  will forward applications and recommendations for
payment to the Deputy Minister.

(5) Disaster Assistance Payments

(a) Disaster assistance is not intended to provide full compensation
for damage, but to assist eligible community governments,
small businesses and community residents in restoring property
to its pre-disaster condition. Disaster assistance is limited to
essential items, the loss of which was neither preventable nor
insurable.

(b) Payments made under this Policy are considered to be "ex-
gratia”, that is, there is no statutory entitlement to a given level
of assistance.

(c)  Assistance may be provided within the following limitations:

() assistance will only be provided for damage in excess of
an amount set by the Minister;

(i) appraisal of improved real property will be based on pre-
disaster conditions;

Revised 10 March 2005 Page 9 of 13



o) Policy

Northwest
Territories

21.04
Disaster Assistance

(iii)

(v)

(V)

(Vi)

the assigned value of damage shall be the total value
arrived at through the application of an approved
Standardized Item List, plus the appraised value of
improved real property;

assistance will be calculated as a percentage of the
assigned value of damage;

the actual percentage of the assigned value of damage
used to calculate assistance will be set by the Minister
and shall not exceed 80 percent;

the maximum assistance payable shall be $100,000 after
exclusions and limitations have been applied.

(d) Eligible costs may include those related to:

0)

(ii)

(iii)

(v)

real property being used as a principal residence and its
ancillary structures, and essential possessions contained
therein;

property being used as a business premise and stock in
trade;

items essential to hunting and trapping, providing the
claimant relies on hunting and trapping for a significant
part of his or her income; or

the reconstruction of essential community services.

(e) Disaster assistance will not be paid when the value of damage
or loss:

0)

(ii)

could have been covered by insurance which was readily
available at a reasonable cost, as determined by the
Disaster Assistance Committee;

is recoverable through legal action;

Revised 10 March 2005

Page 10 of 13



> Policy 1 oa

Northwest Disaster Assistance
erritories

(i)  is eligible for financial assistance under any other
program (the value of any damage or loss which is
beyond the level of assistance provided by any other
program is eligible for financial assistance under this
Policy);

(iv)  is an ordinary or normal risk of a business, trade, calling
or occupation, including loss of income and interest
charges;

(v) can be considered as a normal expenditure of a
business, government, municipal department, or service,
including maintenance costs;

(vi) is considered to be for non-essential items, such as
summer cottages, furs, jewellery, objects of art,
landscaping and residential fencing;

(vii) is considered to be non-essential to the restoration of an
individual's home or livelihood or to the reconstruction of
essential community services;

(viii) could have been reduced or prevented by means
available to persons affected prior to the disaster; or

(ix) isincurred by business other than a small business.

(6) Community Government Disaster Costs

(@) A community government may request assistance under this
Policy to recover extraordinary costs incurred in conducting
emergency operations and to restore damaged public property
to its pre-disaster condition.

(b)  Eligible community government disaster costs may include
those related to:

Revised 10 March 2005 Page 11 of 13



5% Policy 1 oa

Northwest Disaster Assistance
erritories

0] clearance of debris and wreckage from:
e  channels and streams, as necessary,

o intake and outfall of sewers and storm drains to
permit adequate functioning of the systems, and

e water supply reservoirs, as necessary;

(i) removal of damaged buildings which constitute a definite
threat to public safety;

(i)  health and sanitation facilities;
(iv)  repair of streets, roads, wharves and docks;
(V) repairs to publicly-owned sewer and water facilities;

(vi)  planning and design to determine costs of replacement,
including necessary overtime payments for staff;

(vii) emergency operations authorized by the appropriate
authority;

(viii) rental charges for equipment leased to assist in dealing
with or recovering from the disaster;

(ix)  repairs to other community government structures and
equipment which are uninsurable and an integral part of
the municipal operation; and

(xX)  damage to insurable community government facilities of
an amount less than or equal to the deductible amount
of insurance.

Revised 10 March 2005 Page 12 of 13



o) Policy

g 21.04
Northwest Disaster Assistance

Territories

(7)  Applications

(@) Applications by community governments, small businesses or
community residents for assistance under this Policy are to be
directed to the Disaster Assistance Committee.

(b)  Statement of damage and loss forms will be available from the
Disaster Assistance Committee and are to be used as
application for assistance.

7. Financial Resources

Financial resources required under this Policy are conditional on approval of
funds in the Main Estimates by the Legislative Assembly and there being a
sufficient unencumbered balance in the appropriate activity for the fiscal year
for which the funds would be required.

8. Prerogative of the Executive Council
Nothing in this Policy shall in any way be construed to limit the prerogative of

the Executive Council to make decisions or take action respecting disaster
assistance outside the provisions of this Policy.

Premier and Chairman of the
Executive Council

Revised 10 March 2005 Page 13 of 13



REPORT - FLOOD DAMAGE
Public Works Infrastructure

DEPARTMENT: Public Works DATE: May 25, 2021

SUBJECT: Flood Damage to Public Works Infrastructure

Flooding occurred during the spring river break-up and affected Town of Hay River infrastructure
including a number of roads and key access points to Town infrastructure. The following report
summarizes the damage sustained to these assets as well as the ongoing work being done to
address the issues and return the infrastructure to a pre-flood state. Final costs for all work are
not yet known as several areas are still dealing with high water and/or ice buildup and all repairs
are not yet completed. More information can be provided as repair work continues and final costs
become known.

Most of the damage sustained during the flooding on the Public Works assets was to the Town'’s
road system. In addition, there was also some damage to the berm system located in the West
Channel area of Town, although the ice remains high in this area so the full extent of the damage
cannot be ascertained at this time. The areas that sustained noticeable damage due to the high
waters and flooding are indicated on the map below and the damage sustained, and recovery
work, will be detailed in this report.



REPORT - FLOOD DAMAGE
Public Works Infrastructure

1. Lakeshore Drive (South)

The south end of Lakeshore Drive provides access to two residences in the area as well as
access and parking for the public beach. High waters flooded this access road as shown

below in Figure 1 making access to the houses on the road very difficult and eliminating much
of the parking for the public beach.

Figure 1: Lakeshore Drive (S) - May 12

Water was subsequently pumped out of the area by a local resident as shown in Figure 2 but
a large portion remains along the residential side of the road. The road did not sustain much

direct damage but lack of access to the houses and parking lot is an issue that could arise
during future flooding events.

——
N
| —



REPORT - FLOOD DAMAGE
Public Works Infrastructure

Figure 2: Lakeshore Drive (S) - May 20

The Town recommends that a better drainage system be implemented in this area allowing
flood water to flow directly to the lake and provide drainage to the area. Installing a small
catch basin at the north end of this portion of the road which allows drainage under the
adjacent boardwalk to the lake would provide an exit point for any water that accumulates in
this area, thereby maintaining access to the houses for the residents.

2. Lakeshore Drive (North)

The north portion of Lakeshore Drive experienced high water levels which resulted in severe
damage to a portion of the road and there are indications of similar damage occurring in other
areas along this stretch of the road. Figure 3 below shows the area on May 12" when a large
portion of the road was submerged. Figures 4 — 6 show the road on May 20" after water has
been pumped out from the area and Public Works crews have placed crush to try and mitigate
the worst of the damage and allow vehicles to pass through.




REPORT - FLOOD DAMAGE
Public Works Infrastructure

Figure 3: Lakeshore Drive (N) - May 12

Figure 4: Lakeshore Drive (N) - May 20




REPORT - FLOOD DAMAGE
Public Works Infrastructure

Figure 5 & 6: Lakeshore Drive (N) — May 20

This section of Lakeshore Drive was impassable at times and will need to be reconstructed.
Town crews are waiting for the roadway material to dry out further and then will be working
with local contractors to dig up this portion of the road and rebuild it with a better base and
road materials. There are other portions of the road along Lakeshore Drive that are also
showing signs of failure due to the water in the area and these sections will be assessed to
determine if they need to be replaced at this time as well.

The Town will also be looking to relocate a mailbox that is located at the end of this section
of Lakeshore Drive to a location closer to the access from the highway in order to allow
access to the mailbox to be maintained during periods of high water on the road.

3. Alaska Road

Alaska Road is built along the top of the berm in the West Channel area of Town and provides
access to a number of residential properties as well as the West Point First Nations band
office. During the flooding, this section of the road sustained damage due to high water levels
and ice flow in the channel. The result of this damage is that the road is sloughing away and
in danger of falling into the west channel. Figures 7 and 8 show the shoulder of the road and
the cracking on the road on May 12, while figures 9 and 10 show the further damage that
has occurred a week later on May 20™.




REPORT - FLOOD DAMAGE
Public Works Infrastructure

Figure 7 & 8: Alaska Road — May 12

Figure 9 & 10: Alaska Road — May 20




REPORT - FLOOD DAMAGE
Public Works Infrastructure

As the pictures show, the road has gotten worse in this area since the initial damage and
portions have fallen completely into the channel. The cracking on the road surface has also
become progressively worse with additional sections threatening to break off and cause
further damage to the road surface. The Town is working with our engineering consultant to
develop a solution to this problem and stabilize the road. This work will likely involve work in
the channel which will involve obtaining environmental and other federal and territorial
approvals. This approval process will likely prolong the project and require additional work in
order to proceed.

4. West Channel Berm

Water and ice levels threatened to breach the berm in several locations along its length and
ice remains packed up against the berm throughout the area. This accumulation of ice
prevents any assessment of the damage sustained by the berm but given the amount of ice
and the flow of water here during the flood period it is likely that repair work will be necessary
in several areas along the berm. Figures 11 through 13 show the ice alongside the berm as
well as several locations where trees and bushes on the berm were damaged.

Figure 11: Ice Along Berm - May 20




REPORT - FLOOD DAMAGE
Public Works Infrastructure

Figure 12: Ice Along Berm - May 20

Figure 13: Ice Along Berm - May 20




REPORT - FLOOD DAMAGE
Public Works Infrastructure

5. Back Road

High water along the Back Road resulted in flooding of several lots and driveway accesses
in the area. A number of houses were inaccessible to water delivery and sewer pump-out
vehicles resulting in water and sewer issues for these residents. The water had receded
somewhat by the time pictures were taken on May 20™ but the pooling water and the driveway
damage is shown below in figures 14 and 15.

Figure 14: Back Road Water

Figure 15: Back Road Driveway Damage




REPORT - FLOOD DAMAGE
Public Works Infrastructure

6. Water Treatment Plant Road

The Water Treatment Plant Road experienced flooding in several locations. The first location
is along the eastern portion of the road alongside the west channel of the Hay River. This
portion of the road was impassable for a large portion of the duration of the flooding and
remains difficult to pass in smaller vehicles. The road is used as an important access road to
the Town’s Water Treatment Plant as well as providing access to the 2 Seasons Adventures
campsites and Castaways Cottages and Campgrounds located further along the road.
Figures 16 shows the large flow of water across the road on May 10" when the road was
impassable. Figure 17 shows the opposite of this corner on May 10" with more water flowing
across the road and several large ice chunks in the area.

Figure 16: Water Treatment Plant Road - May 10

10

——
| —



REPORT - FLOOD DAMAGE
Public Works Infrastructure

Figure 17: Water Treatment Plant Road - May 10

The flow of water in the area has subsided since this time and Public Works crew have done
work on clearing the road of ice and making initial repairs to some of the damage that has
been done. The water remains deep alongside the road and continues to breech the road
providing a hazard to users and causing further damage to the road. Figures 18 and 19 show
a section of the road that remains under water and the ditch alongside this section containing
a large amount of water.

Figure 18: Water Treatment Plant Road - May 20

11

——
| —



REPORT - FLOOD DAMAGE
Public Works Infrastructure

Figure 19: Water Treatment Plant Road Ditch - May 20

The road throughout this area will need significant repairs both to fix the damage that was
caused by this year’s flooding and also to ensure that access to the water treatment plant is
maintained in future years during high water events.

7. Water Treatment Plant Access Road

The access road into the water treatment plant had water flowing across it for an extended
period of time during the flooding. This water threatened to cut off access to this key piece of
the Town’'s water infrastructure which would affect the water supply to all residents of Hay
River as well as surrounding communities (KFN, Enterprise, Kakisa). While the water
treatment plant itself is on high ground and therefore less susceptible to flood damage, the
access road is key to ensuring operators can continue to provide water to residents. Figures
20 through 23 show the access road on May 6, 7!, 10™, and 20" respectively. The water is
no longer flowing across the road however there was some damage to the road that has
since been fixed and it is vital that this access be maintained through future events.

12

——
| —



REPORT - FLOOD DAMAGE
Public Works Infrastructure

Figure 20: Water Treatment Plant Access - May 6

Figure 21: Water Treatment Plant Access - May 7

13

——
| —



REPORT - FLOOD DAMAGE
Public Works Infrastructure

Figure 22: Water Treatment Plant Access - May 10

Figure 23: Water Treatment Plant Access - May 20

14

——
| —



REPORT - FLOOD DAMAGE
Public Works Infrastructure

8. Water Treatment Plant Road — 2 Seasons Access

Water in this area was very high in the initial stages of the flooding making the road here
impassable. The water levels did drop later on as the flooding moved to other areas along
the Water Treatment Plant Road (#6 on the list). Damage was done to this road which will
need repairs as well as damage being done to both campsites that are located along this
road. The Town will be working on repairs to the road this summer as time and resources
permit and will be looking to install additional culverts and ditching in order to facilitate better
drainage in the future. Figures 24 through 26 show the water on the road on May 7™ when it
covered a large section of the road. Figure 27 shows the same section on May 10" after the
water had receded to a degree, and figure 28 shows the section again on May 20" after an
additional culvert had been installed (at the far pylons in the picture) to facilitate better
drainage and water flow. Figures 29 and 30 show a closer view of the added culvert on top
of the original culvert in this location which did not provide enough flow.

Figure 24: Water Treatment Plant Road - May 7

15

——
| —



REPORT - FLOOD DAMAGE
Public Works Infrastructure

Figure 25: Water Treatment Plant Road - May 7

16

——
| —



REPORT - FLOOD DAMAGE
Public Works Infrastructure

Figure 26: Water Treatment Plant Road - May 7

Figure 27: Water Treatment Plant Road - May 10

17

——
| —



REPORT - FLOOD DAMAGE
Public Works Infrastructure

Figure 28: Water Treatment Plant Road - May 20

Figure 29: Water Treatment Plant Road - Additional Culvert - May 20

18

——
| —



REPORT - FLOOD DAMAGE
Public Works Infrastructure

Figure 30: Water Treatment Plant Road - Additional Culvert - May 20

Town of Hay River crews have already completed some restoration work on this portion of
the road including the installation of the noted culvert. More work will be required in order to
return the road to its pre-flood condition. Additional drainage work, including larger culverts,
may be required to ensure that flooding damage is minimized during future flood events and
to ensure that access to the water treatment plant is maintained.

9. Water Treatment Plant Road — Other Locations

A few other locations along the Water Treatment Plant Road were noted where water was
flowing freely across the road. The water damage in these locations was not as significant as
in the areas noted above, however, some minor repair work will be necessary. In addition,
these areas indicate locations along the road where improved drainage and additional culvert
installation would be beneficial in preventing flooding and future washouts of the road.

——

19

—t



REPORT - FLOOD DAMAGE
Public Works Infrastructure

Figures 31 and 32 show a couple of these additional areas that where water flowed across
the road throughout the flooding period.

Figure 31: Water Treatment Plant Road - May 7

Figure 32: Water Treatment Plant Road - May 10

20

——
| —



REPORT - FLOOD DAMAGE
Public Works Infrastructure

10. Lagoon Road

The Lagoon Road is not intended to be used regularly; it was originally extended to its current
length to provide the Town with back-up access to the water treatment plant in case of
emergency if the normal access is impassable. This road saw a drastic increase in traffic for
the duration of the flooding of areas of the Water Treatment Plant Road as residents used
this road instead of the normal Water Treatment Plant Road. This increase in traffic resulted
in severe damage to the road in numerous places. Figures 33 through 36 show the damage
that has occurred including significant rutting, potholes, and areas of deterioration.

Figure 33: Lagoon Road — May 20

21

——
| —



REPORT - FLOOD DAMAGE
Public Works Infrastructure

Figure 34: Lagoon Road — May 20

Figure 35: Lagoon Road - May 20

22

——
| —



REPORT - FLOOD DAMAGE
Public Works Infrastructure

Figure 36: Lagoon Road - May 20

This road will require repairs along the entire length due to the increased usage and will need
to be monitored throughout the summer to ensure no further deterioration occurs. This road
should be upgraded to provide a higher quality roadway as a back-up access to the water
treatment plant. As this year has demonstrated, flooding of the normal access road can
quickly remove the regular access to the plant and this road becomes a vital piece of Town
infrastructure when this happens. Providing a higher quality roadway in this location would
help reduce the risk of all access to the plant being lost during a flood event.

Summary

As this report has detailed, locations throughout the Town of Hay River have suffered damage
due to the flooding and high waters that occurred this spring. Work has begun to repair the
damage and restore all of the Town infrastructure but plenty of work still remains. Work is
likely to continue in all of these areas throughout the summer as conditions dry out and repairs
can be made.

23

——
| —










































































































































ﬂqgg REPORT TO COUNCIL

e

ORTHWEST TERRITORIES

DEPARTMENT: LANDS DATE: June 15, 2021

SUBJECT: PROPERTY ASSESSMENT & TAXATION ACT TAX SALE PROVISION

RECOMMENDATION: |

THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER in accordance with the Property
Assessment and Taxation Act sets the date of a public auction where taxable property
will be offered for sale on August 12, 2021 at 9:00 am in Town Hall Council Chambers and
through video conferencing with the minimum sale price of each taxable property as
presented in the Report to Council.

BACKGROUND:

The Property Assessment and Taxation Act R.S.N.W.T. 1988, c.P-10 (PATA) Part Il
Taxation, Section 97.6 provides for the recovery of tax arrears by sale at public auction.

The Property Assessment and Taxation Act — Tax Sales Regulations Section 3
establishes the minimum price of a taxable property.

Administration has provided notice pursuant to the legislation to all property owners that
are in arrears for 2019 property taxes and that their properties may be sold for property
tax arrears.

The properties listed below are subject to sale for arrears of property taxes.

Property Address Lot Block | Plan | Mininum Sale Price
3-102 STREET 2 H 40 $27,550.00
48038 MacKENZIE HIGHWAY | 2 XB 190 $55,250.00
3 CAPITAL DRIVE 772-1-2 845 $1,455,350.00
43044 MacKENZIE HIGHWAY | 1926 4196 $198,750.00

The auction will be held at 9:00 am on August 12, 2021 at the Town Hall Council
Chambers in the Town of Hay River.

If prior to commencement of public auction, any person including the assessed owner
pays the arrears of property taxes and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Town to
collect the arrears with respect to a taxable property, the property will not be offered for
auction.

Any person who pays the arrears of property taxes and expenses prior to
commencement of the public auction may obtain a lien on the taxable property for the
amount paid if the person is other than the assessed owner and having an interest,




ﬂqgg REPORT TO COUNCIL

ORTHWEST TERRITORIES

DEPARTMENT: LANDS DATE: June 15, 2021

SUBJECT: PROPERTY ASSESSMENT & TAXATION ACT TAX SALE PROVISION

estate, encumbrance or claim registered or filed under the Land Titles Act in or against
the taxable property or a transferee of such a person.

The assessed owners of any of the above taxable properties is entitled to redeem that
taxable property within 30 days after the date of the public auction by paying the Town
the arrears of property taxes and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Town to
collect the arrears. Where a taxable property that is sold at the public auction is
redeemed by its assessed owner, the sale cannot be completed and all rights and
interest of the purchaser in the taxable property cease.

| COUNCIL POLICY / STRATEGY OR GOAL:

N/A

| APPLICABLE LEGISLATION, BYLAWS, STUDIES, PLANS:

Property Assessment and Taxation Act R.S.N.W.T. 1988, c.P-10 (PATA) Part IlI
Taxation, Section 97.6

| FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

- Collection of arrears amount

| ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATIONS:

- Postpone auction

| ATTACHMENTS:
N/A
Prepared by: Reviewed by:
Susan Gallardo Glenn Smith
Lands Senior Administrative Officer
Date: June 10, 2021 Date: June 10, 2021




LB
m‘a?g REPORT TO COUNCIL
”a}' ver

TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

DEPARTMENT: ADMINISTRATION DATE: JUNE15%", 2021
SUBJECT: EXCUSED ABSENCE
| RECOMMENDATION: |

THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER excuses Mayor Jameson from the
Regular Meeting of Council, Tuesday, June 15", 2021.

| BACKGROUND: |

Mayor Jameson has asked to be excused from the Regular Meeting of Council, Tuesday, June
15, 2021

| COUNCIL POLICY / STRATEGY OR GOAL: |

N/A

| APPLICABLE LEGISLATION, BYLAWS, STUDIES, PLANS: |

N/A

| FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: |

N/A

| ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATIONS: |

N/A

| ATTACHMENTS:

N/A

Prepared by: Reviewed by:
Stacey Barnes

Council Administrator

Date: June 111, 2021

——
—_—
| —







































































































































BYLAW NO. 2427LND/21
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

THIS BY-LAW READ a Second Time this 8" day of June, 2021 A.D.

Mayor

THIS BY-LAW READ a Third and Final Time this day of , 2021 A.D.

Mayor

CERTIFIED that this bylaw has been made in accordance with the requirements of
the Cities, Towns and Villages Act, S.N.W.T., 2003, and the bylaws of the Municipal
Corporation of the Town of Hay River this day of , 2021.

Senior Administrative Officer



BYLAW NO. 2427LND/21

MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

Schedule “A”
Lot Price — Cameron Crescent
. Lot Price
Civic Address Lot # Plan # . .
Not including GST
15 Cameron Crescent 2147 4552 $51,758.00
17 Cameron Crescent 2148 4552 $51,298.00




Cameron Crescent, Hay River NT I
Government of Lot 2147 & Lot 2148 %

Northwest Territories

Plan 360 |

Plan 908

7327 X
Plan 360
S S WS

January 22, 2021

Legend

i1 Block Land Transfer Boundaries [] Municipal Boundaries

|:| Development Areas |:| Surveyed Parcels

|:| Building Footprints Surveyed Easements

- — Line Approximately 31m from O.H.W.M. [-7] Surface Land Withdrawal

- Tenured Commissioner's Land I:l Land Application

|:| Land Application Tenured Territorial Land Scale 1: 1,128
Federal Land Indian Affairs Branch (IAB) Land

I Commissioner's Land Territorial Land 25 metres
Territorial Protected Area - Public Highway I —
Municipal Land Private Land

UTM Zone: 11

Hay River Reserve
COPYRIGHT Government of the Northwest Territories,
Department of Lands.







BYLAW NO. 2430/LND/21
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

A BYLAW OF THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER IN
THE NORTHWEST TERRITORIES, TO PROVIDE FOR THE ACQUISITION OF LAND.

WHEREAS pursuant to the Cities, Towns and Villages S.N.W.T., 2003, c.22, in force
April 1, 2004, Section 53 (1) which states:

53. (1) A municipal corporation may, for a municipal purpose,

(a) acquire real property;

(b) use, hold or develop real property owned by the municipal corporation;
and

(c) subdivide, in accordance with the Planning Act, real property owner by
the municipal corporation.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Council of the Town of Hay River in
the Northwest Territories in regular meeting of Council duly assembled enacts as
follows:

1. The Municipal Corporation of the Town of Hay River acquire LOT One
Ptn, (1 Ptn), BLOCK F, PLAN 39, Hay River from Commissioner of the
Northwest Territories, in consideration of the sum of ONE DOLLAR
($1.00);

2. The said land be acquired for Municipal purposes;
3. That the Mayor or Deputy Mayor and the Senior Administrative Officer of the said

Town of Hay River are hereby authorized to execute any documents to give
effect to the bylaw;

4. This bylaw will take force and effect upon its final reading.
THIS BY-LAW READ A FIRST TIME this day of , 2021 A.D.
Mayor
THIS BY-LAW READ A SECOND TIME this day of , 2021 A.D.

Mayor



BYLAW NO. 2430/LND/21
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

THIS BY-LAW READ a Third and Final Time this day of , 2021 A.D.

Mayor

CERTIFIED that this bylaw has been made in accordance with the requirements
of the Cities, Towns and Villages Act, S.N.W.T., 2003, and the bylaws of the
Municipal Corporation of the Town of Hay River this day of , 2021.

Senior Administrative Officer



Lot 1 Ptn., Block F Plan 39 )
Government o (Formerly Hay River Hotel)

Northwest Territories

East Channel
(Hay River)

Plan 4369
085813019
June 4, 2021
Legend
i1 Block Land Transfer Boundaries Municipal Boundaries
Development Areas [] Surveyed Parcels
[] Building Footprints [ ] Surveyed Easements
- — Line Appraximately 31m from O.H.W.M. "~ Surface Land Withdrawal
Il Tenured Commissioner's Land [ Land Application
[ Land Application I Tenured Territorial Land Scale 1: 2,257
I Federal Land I ndian Affairs Branch (IAB) Land 56 met
M Commissioner's Land Territorial Land el
Territorial Protected Area Bl Fublic Highway —
Municipal Land Private Land
Hay River Reserve UTM Zone: 11
COPYRIGHT Government of the Northwest Territories,
Department of Lands.




	0615 Regular Meeting of Council - Agenda
	0518 Regular Meeting of Council Minutes
	Hay River Mayor Report 2021-May
	0615 Letter of Support - SEFC
	0615 Letter of Support - SEFC attachment
	0615 GNWT Disaster Assistance Policy - 2021 Breakup
	GNWT Disaster Assistance Policy
	Flood Damage Report - Public Works - May 2021
	Report to Council - Fees and Charges Bylaw
	Fees and Charges Bylaw - Track Changes
	SHORT TITLE
	INTERPRETATION
	SEVERABILITY
	SCHEDULES
	Schedule “A”
	5. The Chase the Ace Lottery Bylaw No. 2368 is amended as follows:
	6. The Fees & Charges to Recover Reasonable Administrative Cost Bylaw 1715 “A” is repealed in its entirety.
	7. The Fire Department Service Fees Bylaw No. 2233/PS/17 is amended as follows:
	14. The Zoning Bylaw No. 1812 is amended as follows:
	a) Animal Control
	b) Business Licensing (Annual)


	Section A: Public Piped Service (included in minimum monthly charge)
	Section B: Unmetered Users
	Section C ‐ Truck Water Delivery
	Section C ‐ Truck Water Delivery (continued)
	Section D ‐ Flat Rate Billing
	Section E ‐ High Volume Commercial Consumption (Truck Service)
	Section F ‐ Meter Fees and Services

	Council Resolution 2021 Public Auction 2 Hay River
	0615 Excused Absence
	Bylaw 2141 - Fees and Charges Bylaw
	SHORT TITLE
	INTERPRETATION
	SEVERABILITY
	SCHEDULES
	Schedule “A”
	5. The Chase the Ace Lottery Bylaw No. 2368 is amended as follows:
	6. The Fees & Charges to Recover Reasonable Administrative Cost Bylaw 1715 “A” is repealed in its entirety.
	7. The Fire Department Service Fees Bylaw No. 2233/PS/17 is amended as follows:
	14. The Zoning Bylaw No. 1812 is amended as follows:
	a) Animal Control
	b) Business Licensing (Annual)


	Section A: Public Piped Service (included in minimum monthly charge)
	Section B: Unmetered Users
	Section C ‐ Truck Water Delivery
	Section C ‐ Truck Water Delivery (continued)
	Section D ‐ Flat Rate Billing
	Section E ‐ High Volume Commercial Consumption (Truck Service)
	Section F ‐ Meter Fees and Services

	Cover for Land Disposal
	Disposal ByLaw 2427 Cameron Crescent Lots
	Cameron Crescent
	Bylaw 2430 Cover
	ByLaw 2430 Acquisition of Lot 1 Ptn Block F Plan 39
	Bylaw 2430 Sketch Lot 1 Ptn Block F Plan 39
	Bylaw 2141 - Fees and Charges Bylaw.pdf
	SHORT TITLE
	INTERPRETATION
	SEVERABILITY
	SCHEDULES
	Schedule “A”
	5. The Chase the Ace Lottery Bylaw No. 2368 is amended as follows:
	6. The Fees & Charges to Recover Reasonable Administrative Cost Bylaw 1715 “A” is repealed in its entirety.
	7. The Fire Department Service Fees Bylaw No. 2233/PS/17 is amended as follows:
	14. The Zoning Bylaw No. 1812 is amended as follows:
	a) Animal Control
	b) Business Licensing (Annual)


	Section A: Public Piped Service (included in minimum monthly charge)
	Section B: Unmetered Users
	Section C ‐ Truck Water Delivery
	Section C ‐ Truck Water Delivery (continued)
	Section D ‐ Flat Rate Billing
	Section E ‐ High Volume Commercial Consumption (Truck Service)
	Section F ‐ Meter Fees and Services

	Bylaw 2421- Fees and Charges Bylaw.pdf
	SHORT TITLE
	INTERPRETATION
	SEVERABILITY
	SCHEDULES
	Schedule “A”
	5. The Chase the Ace Lottery Bylaw No. 2368 is amended as follows:
	6. The Fees & Charges to Recover Reasonable Administrative Cost Bylaw 1715 “A” is repealed in its entirety.
	7. The Fire Department Service Fees Bylaw No. 2233/PS/17 is amended as follows:
	14. The Zoning Bylaw No. 1812 is amended as follows:
	a) Animal Control
	b) Business Licensing (Annual)


	Section A: Public Piped Service (included in minimum monthly charge)
	Section B: Unmetered Users
	Section C ‐ Truck Water Delivery
	Section C ‐ Truck Water Delivery (continued)
	Section D ‐ Flat Rate Billing
	Section E ‐ High Volume Commercial Consumption (Truck Service)
	Section F ‐ Meter Fees and Services

	Bylaw 2431 - Fees and Charges Bylaw - Track Changes.pdf
	SHORT TITLE
	INTERPRETATION
	SEVERABILITY
	SCHEDULES
	Schedule “A”
	5. The Chase the Ace Lottery Bylaw No. 2368 is amended as follows:
	6. The Fees & Charges to Recover Reasonable Administrative Cost Bylaw 1715 “A” is repealed in its entirety.
	7. The Fire Department Service Fees Bylaw No. 2233/PS/17 is amended as follows:
	14. The Zoning Bylaw No. 1812 is amended as follows:
	a) Animal Control
	b) Business Licensing (Annual)


	Section A: Public Piped Service (included in minimum monthly charge)
	Section B: Unmetered Users
	Section C ‐ Truck Water Delivery
	Section C ‐ Truck Water Delivery (continued)
	Section D ‐ Flat Rate Billing
	Section E ‐ High Volume Commercial Consumption (Truck Service)
	Section F ‐ Meter Fees and Services




